
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Friday 11 December 2020 
 

Chief Officer's 
Employment Panel 

 

Monday 21 December 2020, 2.00 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Chair)  
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor Mike Johnson 
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Alan Smith 
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ 
Channel. 

 
 If you have any questions or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 702502. 

 

Agenda 
 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

 To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2020. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Appointment to Chief Officer Roles  (Pages 5 - 26) 
 

 

 
Chief Executive 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



At a meeting of the Chief Officer's Employment Panel held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on 
Monday 13 July 2020 at 11.00 am 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Chair)  
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor Mike Johnson 
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Alan Smith 
 
 
Staff Present 
 
K Higgins, J Irving, L Jardine, C Nicholson and L Tomlinson 
 
 
38. Permanent Appointment of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service  

 
The Panel heard an updated position with regards to the Interim Chief 
Executive and Head of Paid Service Mr Andrew Seekings from Councillor M 
Johnson. 
 
Following a performance appraisal meeting on 23 June 2020 with the Deputy 
Leader of the Council Councillor M Johnson, it was confirmed that all initial 
objectives set for Mr Seekings within the performance appraisal had been 
achieved. It was highlighted that those objectives had been met whilst also 
managing the Council through the current Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendation for the Chief Officers 
Employment Panel to recommend that Council approved the permanent 
employment of Mr Andrew Seekings as Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service of Allerdale Borough Council. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor A Smith. 
 
Councillor N Cockburn queried why the appointment was being set at the top of 
the pay scale and why the period of time was being shortened to that that was 
agreed by Council on 11 December 2019. She said consistency was measured 
over time, that the pandemic wasn’t over and she felt the decision should stand 
that was made by Council. 
 
Councillor G kemp stated he worried about the public perception of the salary 
being set at the top of the pay scale, in particular during the current financially 
strained times. He said it would send out the wrong message to the general 
public. 
 
Councillor A Smith commented that Mr Seekings had been at the Council for 
the past 6 years carrying out excellent work, he had been acting up as Interim 
Chief Executive for the past seven months. Councillor A Smith had no problem 
with the post being at the top of the pay scale and said Mr Seekings had proved 
his position.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Councillor M Johnson said Mr Seekings had demonstrated he had exceptional 
leadership skills through what he had dealt with and achieving the objectives 
well within the 12 months timeframe he was set. Councillor Johnson said there 
was no reason why the council wouldn’t accelerate his permanent appointment.  
 
A vote was taken on the recommendations as per the report; 3 in favour, 2 
against and 0 abstentions. 
The motion was carried. 
 
Recommended  
 
That Council be requested to agree that –  
 

a) Andrew Seekings be appointed as Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service with effect from 23rd July 2020 

b) Amendments to the Pay Policy Statement (attached as Appendix 1) 
be approved 

c) Authority be delegated to the Human Resources Manager to take any 
further action necessary to give effect to the contents of the report. 

 
 The Chairman will move:-  

 
“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 and 5 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 

  
39. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 October 2019 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

The meeting closed at 11.22 am 
 

Page 4



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Chief Officer Employment Panel 

21 December 2020 

Appointment to Chief Officer Roles 

 

 
 
Portfolio holder Councillor Marion Fitzgerald, Executive Member for 

Policy, Governance and People resources 

Report from    Andrew Seekings, Head of Paid Service 

Wards affected   N/A  

Is this a key decision  N/A  
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 Following the agreement of the Council’s Pay Policy at the meeting of Council on 9 
December 2020, and as part of the report, the Chief Executive also set out the 
functional responsibilities for each of the new Chief Officer roles. This Panel is 
responsible for dealing with HR matters relating to Chief Officers (CO) including 
their appointment, and this decision is required to make appointments to those CO 
roles.  

 
1.2 The decision of the Panel allows the appointed COs to take up their new roles 

(mainly based on existing or acting up arrangements) from 1st January 2020. This 
also allows the COs to make the transitional management arrangements required in 
some services and ensures there is clarity of responsibility following the removal of 
the Corporate Director post. 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1. That the following appointments are made: 
 

 Sharon Sewell – Chief Officer (Place and Governance) CO Tier 1 

 Catherine Nicholson – Chief Officer (Assets) CO Tier 1 

 Brendan Carlin – Assistant Chief Executive (Innovation and Commercial) CO 
Tier 2 

 Nik Hardy – Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic 
Strategy) CO Tier 2 

 Kevin Kerrigan – Programme Director (Workington) CO Tier 3 

 Graeme Wilson – Programme Director (Maryport) CO Tier 3 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 Paul Wood – Programme Director (Transformation) CO Tier 3  
 
2.2 To note that in accordance with section 5 of the Local Government Act 1989, 

Council has designated the Chief Officer (Place and Governance) as Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
2.3 To note that in accordance with section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

Council has designated the Chief Officer (Assets) as Chief Finance Officer.  

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1.1 A new Chief Executive was appointed in July 2020.  The Chief Executive has 

reviewed how the Council operates and will deliver the objectives within the Council 
Plan; a new Target Operating Model (TOM) has also been adopted.   
 

3.1.2 Alongside this, the COVID-19 pandemic forced the Council to focus resources at 
the response and enabling the delivery of business as usual activity. However it 
now also needs to focus resources on recovery e.g. the Workington Stronger 
Towns Fund and Maryport High Streets Fund. In order to deliver these ambitious 
plans and the Council’s core functions through a new Target Operating Model, the 
structure of the Senior Team needs to be reviewed and accountabilities aligned 
accordingly. 

 
3.2  A salary tier system has been introduced in line with accountabilities for each senior 

 role allowing for the senior team to be paid fairly for the deliverables that are 
 expected from them.  
 

3.3  A market evaluation of senior salaries has taken place in conjunction with guidance 
 from North West Employers and other neighbouring authorities.  The last time any 
 pay review at this level was undertaken was in 2012.  

3.4 As the personnel within the senior team have been performing within their new 
posts for the last year, a significant majority of their accountabilities will remain the 
same.  Therefore in line with the Council’s Change Management Policy, all duties 
within each role are a 70% or more match and so all the post-holders will be 
assimilated into the new role, with the exception of the Programme Director 
(Transformation). Paul Wood, who will be appointed to this role, has agreed this 
approach by removing his current role from the structure. The Chief Executive has 
agreed with HR that this assimilation is fair based on skills, experience and future 
role and is not prejudicing other officers. 

3.5 The pay review of the senior team and introduction of a Tier based pay system, 
reflects the level of accountability the individuals have had over the last year and, 
as we go forward, is based on future accountabilities in order to assist with the 
effective delivery of the Council Plan. 

3.6 The revised pay policy (appendix 1) sets out the remuneration for each role and 
Tier as follows: 

Page 6



Chief Officers (including 
payment for statutory duties) 

COT1 £66,000, £68,000, £70,000.00 

Assistant Chief Executives COT2 £56,000, £58,000, £60,000.00 

Programme Directors COT3 £52,000, £54,000, £56,000.00 

 

3.7 The intention is that each Chief Officer will be appointed to the salary point closest 
to their current remuneration including, where appropriate, any additions they are 
currently being paid in any acting-up role. 

3.8 Each Chief Officer will be given a variation of contract that includes the need to 
successfully deliver their SMART objectives to progress through the pay scale in 
their respective tier. 

4.0  Roles and Responsibilities 

 
4.1  The new roles will each be given a Generic Chief Officer Job profile that sets out 

the strengths, characteristics, values, behaviours and generic duties expected to 
perform the role to a high standard (draft is attached at appendix 2). Each Chief 
Officer will also be given a separate Job Role which sets out the specific duties of 
the role. In summary (not exhaustive) these are: 

 
Chief Officer (Place and Governance) – Sharon Sewell 
 

 To lead Electoral Services and Democratic Services, working with Lead 
Specialists to ensure statutory functions are delivered effectively.  

 

 To act as the Council’s Monitoring Officer  
 

 To be the Council’s Chief Legal Advisor. 
 

 To lead the Council on development control and development planning to 
ensure the Council delivers the expectations of our residents and 
businesses. 
 

 To lead on housing operations, environmental health and licensing to both 
support residents and enable business to grow; and enforce statutory 
requirements as necessary. 
 

 To lead the activity of community safety including the partnership working of 
the local focus hub to deliver better outcomes for residents. 
 

 To act as the principal adviser to the Council's Audit and Standards 
Committee and Sub Committees and to undertake, with others, 
investigations in accordance with the Council's Whistleblowing procedures. 

 
 

Chief Officer (Assets) – Catherine Nicholson 
 

Page 7



 To take the lead role in co-producing the medium term financial plan with 
Executive, Council and SMT; ensure there is strong financial management 
and safe systems in operation across the Council. 
 

 To deliver and co-ordinate the effective management of the Council’s 
physical assets ensuring a commercial approach is delivered.  

  

 To provide specialist finance advice to the contract management and 
partnership arrangements for AWS, AIP, Tivoli, GLL, Housing Company and 
any other key functional areas as required. 

 

 To put communities at the centre of organisation planning in key services 
such as bereavement, sports and leisure.  

 

 To manage the annual closure of accounts, as responsible Financial Officer, 
to ensure that the statutory deadlines are met and the Council’s high 
standards in these areas are maintained.  

 

 To act as the Council’s Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer).  
 

 To maintain strong financial management underpinned by effective financial 
controls, secure systems, keeping proper financial records through adopting 
a mature, business partnering approach to financial management. 

 
Assistant Chief Executive (Innovation and Commercial) – Brendan Carlin 
 

 To act as programme sponsor for to delivery of the Target Operating Model 

and programme office to ensure key internal and external programmes are 

delivered on time and within budget 

 

 To drive forward the Council’s commercial activity, increasing income from 

commercial assets and activity and from fees and charges. 

 

 To lead on contract management including AWS, GLL, Tivoli, (not exhaustive) 

and work with service specialists to ensure the contracts deliver the agreed 

outcomes.  

 

 Lead the programme office to ensure project managers deliver programmes 

of work within specified timescales.  

 

 To take the lead on Information Technology and work closely with key 

stakeholders to deliver transformational IT services.  

 

 To ensure strategic commissioning and procurement is carried out efficiently 

and effectively, ensuring local spend is maximised.  

 

 To manage and implement the capital programmes and ensure the right 

resources are available for key regeneration programmes. 

Page 8



 

 To act as key operational lead for the Allerdale Investment Partnership.  

Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) – Nik 
Hardy 
 

 To lead on the production and delivery of the Council Strategy and Delivery 
Plan to ensure that the Council is delivering the right outcomes for customers 

 

 To deliver an effective policy framework and ensure key Strategies, Plans 
and Policies are reviewed and refreshed within the timeline agreed. 

 

 To act in a manner that ensures residents, members and businesses are at 
the centre of policy planning.  

 

 To take a lead role in the delivery of the People Plan aspect of the Target 
Operating Model ensuring resources within the Council are aligned to key 
activity and supporting the values and behaviours of the Council. 

 

 Work with the Lead Specialist in Policy and Performance to ensure the 
Council has relevant key performance indicators in place and these are 
being met, using those indicators to work with other colleagues to improve 
performance where necessary. 

 

 To develop, review and deliver the key outcomes of the Economic Strategy, 
ensuring other key activity delivers improved prosperity for Allerdale. 

 

 To be the lead Council Officer on Climate Change and implement the 
Climate Change delivery plan. 

 

 To ensure all the statutory requirements of the service are delivered e.g. 
AONB Management Plan 

 
Programme Director (Maryport) – Graeme Wilson 
 

 To be lead Officer for the delivery of the Council’s continued ambitions to 
regenerate Maryport. 
 

 To co-ordinate the resources across Council services, HAZ and TSF to 
deliver the outcomes as agreed with funding bodies and local stakeholders. 

 
 To lead on local governance and board arrangements to ensure the local 

community, businesses and other stakeholders are central to local decision-
making. 

 
 To work directly with the accountable body team to ensure funding is spent 

appropriate and effectively 
 

 To work with the programme office to ensure the programme has the right 
level of resources required for success 

Page 9



 
 To work with potential commercial and private investors to bring further 

investment into Maryport 
 

 To be designated as Chief Executive of the Allerdale Housing Company and 
ensure the delivery of affordable, aspirational and quality homes across 
Allerdale.  

 
Programme Director (Workington) – Kevin Kerrigan 
 

 To be lead Officer for the delivery of the Council’s continued ambitions to 
regenerate Workington. 
 

 To co-ordinate the resources across Council services, Stronger Towns Fund 
and other funds to deliver the outcomes as agreed with funding bodies and 
local stakeholders. 

 
 To lead on local governance and board arrangements to ensure the local 

community, businesses and other stakeholders are central to local decision-
making.  

 
 To work directly with the accountable body team to ensure funding is spent 

appropriate and effectively 
 

 To work with the programme office to ensure the programme has the right 
level of resources required for success 

 
 To work with potential commercial and private investors to bring further 

investment into Workington 
 

 To act as lead Officer for Destination Management across the Council 
including tourism, markets, festivals and events. 

 
Programme Director (Transformation) – Paul Wood 
 

 To act as a deputy for the Chief Executive when required. 
 

 To take the lead role in delivery of the Council’s vision for integrating 
customer services and business administration with an aim to transform the 
council through new, agile ways of working.  

 

 To work across all areas of the organisation maintaining excellent 
relationships and cross departmental working including joint management of 
business administration functions in Assets and Place and Governance. 

 

 To be responsible for delivering a highly effective customer service 
department by ensuring a first class customer experience and transforming 
customer area offices into community and business hubs.  

 

Page 10



 To provide programme assurance on behalf of the Council on the delivery of 
the Target Operating Model. 

 
4.3 The salary tiers have been reviewed on the future accountabilities of the posts 

based mainly on the temporary arrangements that have been in place for the last 
year. The CO Tier 1 roles have the widest responsibilities and breadth of control, 
consolidating temporary arrangements (such as planning and environmental health) 
and include the statutory roles of Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer 
(Section 151 Officer). The roles will pay a lead role in supporting the Executive, 
elected members and the Chief Executive in setting and implementing the strategic 
direction of the Council. 

 
4.4 The Assistant Chief Executive roles also have a wide breadth of control, however, 

less so than the CO Tier 1 roles. These roles will also support the Executive, 
elected members and Chief Executive in setting and implementing the strategic 
direction of the organisation and are set at Tier 2.  The roles include the 
consolidation of previous temporary arrangements (e.g. HR) and will take on some 
functions previously delivered by the Corporate Director (e.g. AONB). The roles will 
also incorporate some responsibilities resulting in the removal of the Head of 
Customer Service and Innovation post (e.g. ICT). In addition, the role/s will support 
areas of the business that require strengthening (e.g. Commissioning, contract 
management and commercial activity), in particular, following recommendations 
from the 2019 peer review and Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
4.5 The Programme Director roles have a narrower breadth of control, however they 

will perform significantly important duties that assist the recovery post-COVID (e.g. 
Maryport Regeneration). In two of the regeneration roles, this is making permanent 
and formal the previously agreed change in role. The Programme Director 
(Transformation) plays a critical role in modernising the Council, in particular 
improving the efficiency and productivity within customer services and business 
support, to reduce hand-offs in the business and delivering further savings, whilst 
improved customer satisfaction. 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Following appointment, each Chief Officer will produce a transition plan to ensure 

the smooth hand-over of service areas. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

6.1.1 The new senior team structure will help deliver the Council Plan by ensuring we 
have the right people, in the right roles at the right time. It provides the certainty of 
current temporary arrangements, builds on individual and collective strengths and 

Page 11



allows the capacity to focus on key business as usual activity, regeneration 
programmes and delivering the new the Target Operating Model. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

6.2.1 A cost saving of £201,316 is achieved by removing the Corporate Director post and 
the Programme Directors (for Workington and Maryport) being funded directly 
through their programmes of work and projects.  

6.2.2 As part of the capital project cost, the Council is able to draw down funds to support 
the development, delivery and execution of projects. The Council can choose to 
employ external staff/consultants to deliver these tasks, in some cases it may need 
to do that based on the skills required, however, it will utilise existing resources 
wherever possible. 

 Breakdown as follows:- 

Salary costs for Senior Team (at 
present) inclusive of Corporate 
Director post 

£621,268 

Salary costs for Senior Team 
(proposed)  

£419,952 

 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

6.3.1 The Pay Policy Statement is to be updated to reflect changes to senior officer 
salaries. Council agreed the amended Pay Policy at its meeting on 9 December 
2020.  

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence 
Controls 
required 

Mitigated 
score 

The new postholders 
do not deliver to the 
quality necessary to 
modernise the 
Council and deliver 
excellent services 

Does not lead to 
delivering improved 
services and Council 
plan outcomes 

Appraise and 
performance 
management 
framework 

1x4 

The cost of the 
Programme 
management is not 
eligible through the 
programmes of work 

This increases the cost 
of SMT and saving 
cannot be achieved 

Considered 
guidance 
from 
schemes and 
project costs 
are available 

1x4 

 

Page 12



6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

6.5.1 The new senior team structure will help deliver the Council Plan by ensuring we 
have the right people, with the right strengths and skills to deliver the roles required.   

 
6.6 Equality impacts 

6.6.1 Has been considered and no impact assessment is required.   

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

6.7.1 None applicable.  

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

6.8.1 None applicable.  

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

6.9.1 None applicable  

6.10 Other significant implications 

6.10.1 None applicable.  
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Pay Policy  

2 Draft Generic Job Profile 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Functional responsibilities attached 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Andrew Seekings 
Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) 
Andrew.seekings@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702528 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



 

Appendix 1 
Allerdale Borough Council 

 
Pay Policy Statement – 2020/2021 

 
 

1. Introduction and Purpose 
 
Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to 
appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit”. This 
Pay Policy Statement (the ‘statement’) sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011.   

 
The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting the pay of its employees by identifying; 

 the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined; 

 the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as 
defined by the relevant legislation; 

 the Chief Executive (as the Head of Paid Service) is responsible for ensuring the 
provisions set out in this statement are applied consistently throughout the Council 
and recommending any amendments to the Council. 
 

Once approved by the Council, this policy statement will come into immediate effect and 
will be subject to review on a minimum of an annual basis, the policy for the next financial 
year being approved by 31st March each year.  

 
The introduction of the Code of Practice for Local Authority on Data Transparency 2015 
places additional duties on Local authorities in terms of publication of pay details which 
are included in the document.  The Code also requires the publication of Trade Union 
Facility Time and the annual publication of organisation structure charts which are 
contained in Appendix 1. 

 
2. Other legislation relevant to pay and remuneration 

 
In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council will comply 
with all relevant employment legislation.  This includes legislation such as the Equality 
Act 2010, Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) 
Regulations 2000 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Earnings) Regulations 2006.   

 
The Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and that all 
pay differentials can be objectively justified through the use of job evaluation 
mechanisms, which directly establish the relative levels of posts in grades according to 
the requirements, demands and responsibilities of the role.  

 
3. Pay and Grading Structure 

  
The Council uses the nationally negotiated pay spine (i.e. a defined list of salary points) 
as the basis for its local pay structure, which determines the salaries of its employees 
(published on the intranet). The actual salary levels for each post other than Chief 

Page 15



 

Officers are determined by reference to the Council’s job evaluation scheme. This is a 
national scheme. 

 
It should be noted that the National Joint Council (NJC) pay spinal column points will be 
revised with effect from the date of any updated Agreement following a National Pay 
Bargaining process. Should there be any implications for the Council’s existing grading 
structure as a consequence of the Agreement any necessary revisions will be made and 
any significant issues will be reported as appropriate. 

 
All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally negotiated 
rates, having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining 
machinery. 
 
In determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for any posts which 
fall outside its scope, the Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in 
respect of the use of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain 
employees who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to 
the community, delivered effectively and efficiently and at times at which those services 
are required.   
 
New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant pay scale for the 
grade, although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate. Where 
the appointment salary is above the minimum point of the pay scale this will be within the 
discretion of the appointing officer under the Recruitment and Selection Policy. 
 
From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay levels in the 
labour market in order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills 
and capacity.  Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is 
objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant market 
comparators, using data sources available from within the local government sector and 
outside, as appropriate, in accordance with the Market Factor Supplement Policy. 
 
Any temporary supplement to the salary scale for the grade is approved in accordance 
with the Market Factor Supplement Procedure and the Acting up and Honoraria 
Procedure. 

 
All employees are covered by the National Joint Council Agreement on Pay and 
Conditions of Service except for Chief Officers who are covered by a separate National 
Joint Council Agreement for Chief Officers of Local Authorities. 
 
**Note: At the time of the amendment to this pay policy mid-year, the Council are 
currently reviewing the pay structure with a view to implementing a job families approach.  
This is in full discussion with the workplace Trade Union.  
 

 
Salary levels for Chief Officers were set by Council after consideration of an independent 
review which was undertaken externally by North West Employers Organisation (NWEO) 
in 2012 and in September 2020 by our People Resources Team in conjunction with other 
neighbouring authorities. In relation to the Programme Director roles, we looked at similar 
roles in the North West region as a number have been advertised recently.  

Page 16



 

The determination of any new salary structure is undertaken in accordance with the 
guidance produced by the Joint Negotiating Committees for Chief Executives and Chief 
Officers which says that when deciding the level of remuneration the following factors 
should be considered: 
 

 The Chief Executive’s salary and that of senior staff not covered by the Chief 
Officers’ JNC; 

 Any special market considerations; 

 Any substantial local factors not common to authorities of similar type and size. 

 Comparative salary information from other similar authorities; 

 Top management structures and the size of the management team compared to 
those of other authorities of similar type and size; 

 The relative job size of each post, as objectively assessed. 
 

There is no separate provision for Chief Officers in relation to the Council’s general 
employment policies and statements. Arrangements for Chief Officers are dealt with in 
accordance with the Council’s ordinary policies.  

 
4. Senior Management Remuneration 

Details of the senior management remuneration are included below: 
 

Job Title Tier  Salary 

Chief Executive N/A £102,794.18, £105,921.89,  
£109,049. 81 

Chief Officers (including payment for 
statutory duties) 

COT1 £66,000, £68,000, £70,000.00 

Assistant Chief Executives COT2 £56,000, £58,000, £60,000.00 

Programme Directors COT3 £52,000, £54,000, £56,000.00 

 
 

Returning Officer 
 
The statutory designation of the Returning Officer currently sits with the Chief Executive. 
The Council is required to provide funding to the Returning Officer to discharge statutory 
functions relating to the administration of local government elections. The Returning 
Officer will make payments to those officers who undertake specific duties in relation to 
the elections in accordance with their role.  
 
Electoral Registration Officer 
 
The statutory designation of the Electoral Registration Officer currently sits with the Chief 
Executive. The Electoral Registration Officer is, by default, appointed the Acting 
Returning Officer for UK Parliamentary elections. There is no separate payment for the 
role.  
 
Deputy Electoral Registration Officers 
 
The Chief Officer (Place and Governance); and the Electoral Services Manager are both 
appointed by council to act as Deputy Electoral Registration Officers. There is no 
separate payment for the role.  

Page 17



 

 
Monitoring Officer  
 
The designation of the statutory role of Monitoring Officer sits with the Chief Officer 
(Place and Governance).   
 
Chief Finance Officer  
 
The designation of the statutory role of Chief Finance Officer sits with the Chief Officer 
(Assets).  
 
Deputy Statutory Officer Roles 
 
Deputy Monitoring Officer(s) and Deputy Section 151 Officer(s), will be appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer respectively, these will be remunerated at 
£2,000 per annum. 
 
Further details are published in the Council’s Annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
Deputising Arrangements for the Chief Executive 
 
The Chief Executive will authorise one or more Chief Officers to deputise for him in the 
event of his absence, with appropriate remuneration depending on the circumstances of 
the deputising arrangement.  

  
5. Recruitment of Chief Officers 

 
The Council’s policy and procedures with regard to recruitment of Chief Officers is set out 
within section 8.5 of the Constitution.   

 
When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of all provisions 
of relevant employment law and its own equal opportunities in Recruitment & Selection, 
and Change Management Policy.   

 
The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed Chief Officer 
will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the time of 
recruitment.   

 
6. Additions to Salary of Chief Officers 

 
To meet specific operational requirements it may be necessary for an individual to 
temporarily take on additional duties to their identified role. The Council’s arrangements 
for authorising any additional remuneration (e.g. honoraria, ex gratia, ‘acting up’) relating 
to temporary additional duties are the same for all officers and are set out in the Acting 
up, Honorarium & Secondment Policy.  
 
The Senior Management team receive an on-call/standby fee, where required. The same 
rate is applicable for all employees who undertake on call/standby cover. 
 
Essential car user may be paid to the Senior Management team providing their role 
meets the criteria which is applicable to all employees. 

Page 18



 

 
In addition to basic salary, the following posts receive additional pay as set out below; 

 
 

Post / Tier of post Payment details  

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The designation of Returning Officer is made by Full Council 
and currently sits with the Chief Executive. 
 
The fees paid for Returning Officer services are as follows : 
 

In accordance with the national agreement the Returning 
Officer is entitled to receive and retain the personal fees 
arising from performing the duties of the RO, ARO, PARO, 
LRO, DRO or DARO and similar position which they perform 
subject to the payment of pension contributions thereon, 
where appropriate. 
 
In respect of Borough and Parish Council elections the fee 
is based on a calculation of £140 per Borough Ward and 
£140 per contested parish. 
 
Fees for elections duties for other elections (Police & Crime 
Commissioner elections, County Council elections, National 
Referendums and European Parliamentary elections etc.) 
are paid as an additional sum at the rate prescribed by 
government as and when they arise, they are distinct from 
the process for the determination of pay for Chief Officers. 

 
 
7. Bonus Payments 

 
The Council does not operate any variable pay or bonus schemes.  

 
8. Pension Contributions  

 
Where employees have exercised their statutory right to become members of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, the Council is required to make a contribution to the 
scheme representing a percentage of the pensionable remuneration due under the 
contract of employment of that employee.  The rate of contribution is set by Actuaries 
advising the Cumbria Pension Fund and reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure 
the scheme is appropriately funded.  The table below sets out the contributions for 
2020/21 and the employee contribution rates are based on actual pensionable pay as 
detailed in the table below.  These rates are published each year.  
 
There are two sections in the scheme now – the main section and the 50/50 section. 
 
The main section of the scheme is the section an employee will be placed in. In that 
section, employees pay normal contributions and get the normal pension build up. 
 
The 50/50 section was brought in as part of the 2014 scheme. Employees can elect to 
take this option at any time, pay half their normal contributions and build up half their 

Page 19



 

normal pension. If employees have more than one employment they can elect to take the 
50/50 option in one, some or all of their employments. Regardless of the section 
employees are in, they get full life assurance cover. 
 
 

 Contribution table 2020/2021 

Band Actual Pensionable Pay for an 
employment 

Contribution rate for that employment 

  Main Section 50/50 Section 

1 Up to £14,600 5.5% 2.75% 

2 £14,601 - £22,800 5.8% 2.9% 

3 £22,801 - £37,100 6.5% 3.25% 

4 £37,101 - £46,900 6.8% 3.4% 

5 £46,901 - £65,600 8.5% 4.25% 

6 £65,601 - £93,000 9.9% 4.95% 

7 £93,001 - £109,500 10.5% 5.25% 

8 £109,501 - £164,200 11.4% 5.7% 

9 £164,201 or more 12.5% 6.25% 

 
 
9. Payments on Termination 

 
The Council’s approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of 
employment of Chief Officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age, is the same as for 
all employees set out within its Pension Discretion Policy in accordance with Regulations 
5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary 
Compensation) Regulations 2006 and Regulation 12 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contribution) Regulations 2007.   

 
10. Pay Analysis 

 
Calculations in this document are taken using October payroll data. 
 
Median Salary 
 
This calculation is based on the middle number in a set of data, when the data has been 
written in ascending size order, this includes all staff within the paid services of the 
Council, including the Chief Executive. The median salary using the October 2020 payroll 
was £27,741. This is based on a staffing number of 231 and total remuneration of 
£6,856,380.51 (based on all posts at their full-time equivalent rate.) 

 
Lowest paid employees 
 
Using October 2020 payroll data, the lowest paid employee was on a salary of persons 
employed under a contract of £17,364 per annum, however the Council pays the Living 
Foundation Wage, which is currently £9.30 per hour. This means that the lowest paid 
employee is actually paid £17,942.  

 
Apprentices are appointed to Allerdale Borough Council on the Living Foundation Wage. 
 
 

Page 20



 

Pay Multiple 
 
The ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid taxable earnings (£109,049.81) 
and the median earnings figure (£27,741) of the whole Council’s workforce. The 
Council’s highest paid employee is the Chief Executive. Therefore, the ‘pay multiple’, of 
the whole of the Council’s workforce is 1: 4 (as at December 2020) 
 
As part of the Council’s overall and ongoing monitoring of alignment with external pay 
markets, both within and outside the sector, the Council will use available benchmark 
information as appropriate. In addition, upon the annual review of this statement, the 
Council will also monitor any changes in the relevant ‘pay multiples’ and benchmark 
against other comparable local authorities. 

 
11. Publication 

 
Upon approval by the Full Council, this statement will be published on the Council’s 
website.  

 
12. Accountability and Decision Making 

 
In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, the Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Officer Employment Panel and Council are responsible for decision making in relation to 
the recruitment, pay, terms and conditions and severance arrangements in relation to 
Chief Officers of the Council. 

 
13. Re-employment/Re-engagement of former Chief Officers  

 
The Council will not normally employ or engage under a contract of service Chief Officers 
who have previously received a redundancy or severance payment or who are in receipt 
of a pension under the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 
The Small Business, Enterprise & Employment Act 2015 makes provision requiring the 
repayment of some or all of any qualifying exit payment in qualifying circumstances. 

 
 
 

Andrew Seekings 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Chief Executive
Monitoring Officer
Section 151 Officer

Executive Support

Nik Hardy
Assistant CE Policy 

Performance & 
Economic Strategy

Tier 2

Brendan Carlin
Assistant CE 
Innovation & 
Commercial

Tier 2

Catherine Nicholson
CO Assets

Tier 1

Sharon Sewell
CO Place & 
Governance

Tier 1

Paul Wood
Programme Director

Transformation 

Tier 3

Graeme Wilson
Programme Director 

Maryport
Tier 3

Kevin Kerrigan
Programme Director

Workington
Tier 3

Assurance Risk & Audit
Building Control

*Business Support
Community Safety & 

Resilience
Crisis & Prevention

Data Protection
Democratic & Electoral 

Services
Enforcement

Environmental Health – 
Business Place & 

Community
Gypsy & Travellers

Homelessness
Housing Operations

Land Charges
Legal

Licensing
Planning
Scrutiny

* Business Support
Customer Services

Fulfilment
Visiting Officers

Post Room

Maryport Regeneration
Housing Company

Workington Regeneration
Destinations

Events
Management 

Markets
Tourism

AONB
Communications & 

Marketing
Corporate Strategy & 

Policy
Housing Strategy
Human Resources

Nuclear Policy
Performance
Spatial Policy

Strategic Economic 
Strategy

Capital Programmes & 
Projects

Commissioning
Commercial

Contract Management
IT

Procurement
Programme Office

Benefits
Bereavements

Building Cleaning
Building Maintenance

Estates
Engineers

*Business Support
Debt Recovery

Finance & Payroll
Harbour

Parks & Open Spaces
Parking Services

Property Services
Public Conveniences

Revenues
Health, Safety, 

Emergency Planning & 
Resilience

Pest Control
Sports & Leisure Services

Temporary 
Accommodation

Waste Admin
Workington Nature 

Partnership

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



 

Senior Management Team, Generic Role Profile  
 

  
 
 

This generic profile applies to all officers on Chief Officer’s terms and conditions. 

A separate role profile for each post defines the specific key accountabilities for each role and the 

designated pay tier.  

Job Title: Chief Officer 

Directorate:  
 

Senior Management Team 

Responsible to:  
 

Head of Paid Service 

Place of Work:  
 

Flexible 

Hours of Work:  37 (flexi policy applies).  However additional hours may be 
expected as and when the Council requires.  

Job Purpose  
 

 
This role will provide strategic leadership to the service areas of responsibility to deliver positive outcomes 
for residents and businesses, act as an inspirational, transformational leader who embraces continual 
service improvement and strives for great value for money and delivers stretching targets.   
 
The post-holder will work collaboratively with the partners, senior leadership team, executive and elected 
Members to make the best strategic leadership decisions.   
 

Leadership team generic accountabilities 
 

 
1) Provide transformational leadership in allocated service groups, with full accountability for ensuring 

teams deliver their responsibilities in regards to the Council Strategy and Target Operating Model based 
on the Council’s agreed core values and behaviours. 
 

2) To contribute to key programmes and projects, constantly looking for new opportunities to Improve 
Lives.  
 

3) Create an engaging, supportive and empowering culture where employees are encouraged to thrive 
and innovate. 
 

4) Create a learning environment that is solutions focussed and builds the reputation of the Council 
through excellence in service delivery. 
 

5) Ensure the leadership in the following areas:  
 

 Staff Appraisals are completed to support conversations that ensure employees understand what 
great looks like, ensuring the right training and development plan is established 
 

 FOI requests are delivered on time and with the relevant accuracy 
 

 Key Performance is measured, improved where necessary and is a key driver for business change 
 

 Service planning is based on customer insight, business intelligence and metrics 
 

 Complaints are answered within agreed timescales and where these complaints require change 
within the business, this is acted on promptly 

Page 25



 

Senior Management Team, Generic Role Profile  
 

 

 Audit Recommendations and Financial forecasting is delivered accurately and on time 
 

 Contracts Register is maintained to ensure the Council can plan key investments 
 

 Risk management is managed within the service area and ensuring ley corporate risks have 
appropriate mitigating actions 

 

 Business Continuity is review and emergency planning delivered.  
 

6) To ensure all staff in the service groups are aware of and comply with, the Council’s Code of Conduct 
and Policies and Procedures.  
 

7) All other duties as designated by the Head of Paid service. 
 

 

Behaviours  
 

 
The post holder will be expected to lead by example and to behave in accordance with the Allerdale 
Borough Council behaviours framework and ensure active engagement in these behaviours across the 
service area. 
 

Strengths  
 

 
- Honesty and integrity 
- Innovative 
- Confident 
- Inspirational 
- Committed 
- Good communicator 
- Decisive 
- Accountable 
- Ability to delegate and empower others  

 

Knowledge, Skills & Experience  
 

 

 Demonstrate thorough working knowledge of the working practices and methodologies, legislation and 
developments in their respective specialism and/or service area 

 Demonstrate understanding of how collaboration delivers better outcomes  

 Demonstrate the understanding and navigating complexity and uncertainty, developing and delivering 
solutions to complex issues 

 

 

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	3 Appointment to Chief Officer Roles
	Appendix 1 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix 1 SMT Functionalities
	SMT Functionalities 11122020.vsdx
	Page-1


	Appendix 2


